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§ 1.5003 Effect of filing. 
A person applying in good faith for a 

Commission determination of exempt 
telecommunications company status 
will be deemed to be an exempt tele-
communications company from the 
date of receipt of the application until 
the date of Commission action pursu-
ant to § 1.5004. 

[61 FR 52899, Oct. 9, 1996; 61 FR 57335, Nov. 6, 
1996] 

§ 1.5004 Commission action. 
If the Commission has not issued an 

order granting or denying an applica-
tion within 60 days of receipt of the ap-
plication, the application will be 
deemed to have been granted as a mat-
ter of law. 

[61 FR 52899, Oct. 9, 1996; 61 FR 57335, Nov. 6, 
1996] 

§ 1.5005 Notification of Commission ac-
tion to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

The Secretary of the Commission 
will notify the Securities and Exchange 
Commission whenever a person is de-
termined to be an exempt tele-
communications company. 

[61 FR 52899, Oct. 9, 1996; 61 FR 57335, Nov. 6, 
1996] 

§ 1.5006 Procedure for notifying Com-
mission of material change in facts. 

If there is any material change in 
facts that may affect an ETC’s eligi-
bility for ETC status under Section 
34(a)(1) of the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935, the ETC must, 
within 30 days of the change in fact, ei-
ther: 

(a) Apply to the Commission for a 
new determination of ETC status; 

(b) File a written explanation with 
the Commission of why the material 
change in facts does not affect the 
ETC’s status; or 

(c) Notify the Commission that it no 
longer seeks to maintain ETC status. 

[61 FR 52899, Oct. 9, 1996; 61 FR 57335, Nov. 6, 
1996] 

§ 1.5007 Comments. 
(a) Any person wishing to be heard 

concerning an application for ETC sta-
tus may file comments with the Com-

mission within fifteen (15) days from 
the release date of a public notice re-
garding the application, or such other 
period of time set by the Commission. 
Any comments must be limited to the 
adequacy or accuracy of the applica-
tion. 

(b) Any person who files comments 
with the Commission must also serve 
copies of all comments on the appli-
cant. 

(c) An applicant has seven (7) days to 
reply to any comments filed regarding 
the adequacy and accuracy of its appli-
cation, or such other period of time as 
set by the Commission. Such reply 
shall be served on the commenters. 

[61 FR 52899, Oct. 9, 1996; 61 FR 57335, Nov. 6, 
1996] 

Subpart U—Implementation of 
Section 325(e) of the Commu-
nications Act: Procedures 
Governing Complaints Filed 
by Television Broadcast Sta-
tions Against Satellite Carriers 
for Retransmission Without 
Consent 

SOURCE: 65 FR 10720, Feb. 29, 2000, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 1.6000 Purpose. 
The purpose of part 1, Subpart U, is 

to implement Section 325(e) of the 
Communications Act of 1934, as amend-
ed, 47 U.S.C. 325(e), et seq., as added by 
section 1009 of the Satellite Home 
Viewer Improvement Act of 1999, Pub-
lic Law 106–113, section 1000(9), 113 Stat. 
1501, Appendix I (1999). The procedures 
set forth in this subpart supersede 47 
U.S.C. 312. 

§ 1.6001 Retransmission consent com-
plaint procedures. 

By whom. If a television broadcast 
station believes that a satellite carrier 
has retransmitted its broadcast sta-
tion’s signal to any person in the local 
market of such station in violation of 
47 U.S.C. 325 (b)(1), the station may file 
a complaint with the Commission 
under this section. 

§ 1.6002 Form and content. 
(a) The following format shall be 

used for complaints of this type: 
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Federal Communications Commission § 1.6005 

Before the Federal Communications 
Commission 

Washington, D.C. 20554 

In the Matter of Complainant, 
v. 
Defendant 
File No. (to be inserted by the staff) 

Complaint 

To: The Commission. 
The complainant (here insert the name, ad-
dress, and call letters of the complaining tel-
evision broadcast station) avers that: On 
(here insert the dates upon which the alleged 
transmission occurred), retransmission of 
the broadcast television station’s signal was 
made by (insert here name and address of the 
satellite carrier) to (here insert the street 
address of at least one person in the local 
market of the station to whom the alleged 
retransmission was made). The complainant 
avers that (here insert a statement that the 
retransmission was not expressly authorized 
by the television broadcast station), and re-
quests that the appropriate relief be granted 
by the Commission, as provided by the perti-
nent provisions of the Communications Act 
of 1934, as amended, and the Commission’s 
Rules. 
Date: 
(here insert the name and address of counsel 
for the complaining station). 

(b) A complaint lacking any of the 
foregoing information shall be dis-
missed by the FCC without prejudice to 
the complaining station. 

(c) Additional information may be 
provided, and, where applicable, should 
conform to the requirements set forth 
in §§ 1.48 through 1.52 of the Commis-
sion’s rules. 

§ 1.6003 Service requirements. 
(a) General. Pursuant to 47 U.S.C. 

325(e), for purposes of any proceeding 
under this subsection, any satellite 
carrier that retransmits the signal of 
any broadcast station shall be deemed 
to designate the Secretary of the Com-
mission as its agent for service of proc-
ess. 

(b) Specific. (1) A television broadcast 
station shall serve a satellite carrier 
with a complaint concerning an alleged 
violation of 47 U.S.C. 325(b)(1) by filing 
the original and two copies of the com-
plaint on the Secretary of the Commis-
sion and serving a copy of the com-
plaint by means of two commonly used 
overnight delivery services, each ad-
dressed to the chief executive officer of 

the satellite carrier at its principal 
place of business and each marked 
‘‘URGENT LITIGATION MATTER’’ on 
the outer packaging. Service shall be 
deemed complete one business day 
after a copy of the complaint is pro-
vided to the delivery services for over-
night delivery. On receipt of a com-
plaint filed by a television broadcast 
station under this subsection, the Sec-
retary of the Commission shall send 
the original complaint by United 
States mail, postage prepaid, receipt 
requested, addressed to the chief execu-
tive officer of the satellite carrier at 
its principal place of business. 

(2) Satellite carriers shall provide the 
name, address, and telephone number 
(including area code) of their chief ex-
ecutive officers to the Secretary of the 
Commission, no later than April 15, 
2000. Satellite carriers shall update this 
information, as necessary, in the event 
that the identity or the address of 
their respective chief executive officers 
changes. These updates shall be made 
by United States mail within seven (7) 
days of such changes. Complaints sent 
to the last known address shall be 
deemed served if the satellite carrier 
fails to notify the Secretary of the 
Commission in accordance with this 
provision. 

§ 1.6004 Answers. 
Within five (5) business days after the 

date of service, without regard to § 1.4 
of this part, the satellite carrier shall 
file its answer with the Commission, 
and shall contemporaneously serve the 
answer upon counsel designated in the 
complaint, at the address listed for 
such counsel in the complaint. Service 
of the answer shall be made by use of 
one commonly used overnight delivery 
service and by the United States mail. 

§ 1.6005 Exclusive defenses. 
(a) The defenses listed in paragraphs 

(a)(1) through (a)(4) of this section, are 
the only defenses available to a sat-
ellite carrier against which a com-
plaint under this section is filed. 

(1) The satellite carrier did not re-
transmit the television broadcast sta-
tion’s signal to any person in the 
‘‘local market’’ of the television broad-
cast station, as that term is defined in 
17 U.S.C. 122(j) (Designated Market 
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